
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Charlotte Evans 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864210   Ebost: evansca1@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 23 Tachwedd 2016 

 
 
 
 
Annwyl Syr/Fadam, 
 
Bydd cyfarfod Cabinet yn cael ei gynnal yn Ystafell Sirhywi, Tŷ Penallta, Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach ar 
Dydd Mercher, 30ain Tachwedd, 2016 am 2.00 pm. i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda 
canlynol. 
 

Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Chris Burns    

PRIF WEITHREDWR DROS DRO 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
 

 
2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 
  

 
 
Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau 
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr 
a Swyddogion..    

 
I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:-  
 
3  Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 16eg Tachwedd 2016.  

1 - 6 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus



 

 

 
I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol y mae angen penderfyniadau gweithredol arnynt: -  
 
4  Ysgol Arfaethedig Ar Gyfer Oedran 3-18 Yn Rhymni.  

7 - 12 
 

5  Ysgol Uwch Cwmcarn -  Bwriad i gau  
13 - 16 

 
6  Cynigion Arbedion Drafft ar gyfer 2017/18  

17 - 24 
 

7  Ceisiadau Cyfalaf  
25 - 30 

 
 
Cylchrediad: 
 
Cynghorwyr 
 D. Havard, Mrs C. Forehead, N. George, D.T. Hardacre, K. James, Mrs B. A. Jones, D.V. Poole, 
K.V. Reynolds, T.J. Williams a R. Woodyatt,  
 
A Swyddogion Priodol. 



  

 

 

CABINET 

 

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD YN NHŶ PENALLTA, TREDOMEN 
DYDD MERCHER, 16EG TACHWEDD 2016 AM 2.00PM 

 

 
YN BRESENNOL: 

 
Y Cynghorydd K. V. Reynolds – Cadeirydd 

 
Cynghorwyr: 

 
 Mrs C. Forehead (Adnoddau Dynol a Llywodraethu/Rheoli Busnes),N. George 

(Gwasanaethau Hamdden a Chymunedol), D. Hardacre (Perfformiad a Rheoli Asedau),  Mrs 
B. Jones (Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), D.V. Poole (Dirprwy Arweinydd ac Aelod y Cabinet 
dros Dai), T.J. Williams (Priffyrdd, Cludiant a Pheirianneg), R. Woodyatt (Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol). 

 
 

Ar y cyd gyda: 
 
 C. Burns (Prif Weithredwr Dros dro), C. Harrhy (Cyfarwyddwraig Corfforaethol - Cymunedau), 

N. Scammell (Cyfarwyddwraig Weithredol Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol Dros Dro a Swyddog 
Adran 151) a D.Street (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol). 
 

Hefyd yn Bresennol: 
 

 S. Harris (Pennaeth Cyllid Corfforaethol Dros Dro), C. Jones (Pennaeth Perfformiad ac Eiddo) 
a C. Evans (Swyddog Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor) 

 
  
1.  YMDDIHEURIADAU DROS ABSENOLDEB 

 
 Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorwyr D. Havard a K. James. 
  
 

2. DATGANIADAU DIDDORDEB 

 

 Ni chafwyd datganiadau o ddiddordeb ar ddechrau nac yn ystod y  cyfarfod. 
 
  
3. CABINET - 2IL TACHWEDD 2016 

 

PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 2il Tachwedd 
2016 (rhifau cofnod. 1- 8) i'w cymeradwyo a'u llofnodi fel yn gofnod cywir. 

 
 
4. PANEL YMGYNGHOROL CENEDLAETHAU'R DYFODOL A GYNHALIWYD AR 9FED 

Mehefin 2016 . 

 
PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo cofnodion Panel Ymgynghorol Cenedlaethau'r 
Dyfodol Ymgynghorol a gynhaliwyd ar 27ain Mehefin 2016 ( rhifau cofnod. 1 - 7) i nodi. 

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3

Page 1



  

 

 MATERION SYDD ANGEN PENDERFYNIADAU GWEITHREDOL 
 
 

5. ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB REFENIW AWDURDOD CYFAN CANOL-BLWYDDYN 

2016/17 

 

 Mae'r adroddiad yn rhoi manylion o wariant cyllideb refeniw awdurdod cyfan a ragwelir ar 
gyfer y flwyddyn ariannol 2016/17 ac yn rhoi diweddariad ar gynnydd o ran cyflawni arbedion 
a gymeradwywyd ar gyfer 2016/17. 

 
 Mae'r adroddiad yn rhoi gwybodaeth am sefyllfa'r awdurdod cyfan mewn perthynas â monitro'r 

gyllideb refeniw ar gyfer 2016/17.  Mae adroddiadau monitro cyllideb fanwl yn cael eu paratoi 
ar gyfer Pwyllgorau Craffu drwy gydol y flwyddyn ariannol.  Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r 
tueddiadau gwariant ac incwm yn ystod hanner cyntaf y flwyddyn a gwnaed rhagamcanion o'r 
sefyllfa alldro tebygol ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn.  Lle nodwyd amrywiadau oddi wrth y gyllideb 
gwnaed sylwadau arnynt drwy'r adroddiad. 

 
 Nododd y Cabinet fod yr adroddiad hefyd yn rhoi manylion am y cynnydd o ran cyflawni 

arbedion cyllideb refeniw a gymeradwywyd ar gyfer y flwyddyn ariannol 2016/17 ac amlygodd 
y meysydd hynny lle nad yw arbedion yn dod yn eu blaen fel y bwriadwyd yn wreiddiol. 

 
 Diolchodd yr Aelodau i'r Swyddog am yr adroddiad manwl a nodwyd nad oedd pob un o'r 

cynigion arbedion wedi eu cyflawni.  Mae cyfnod heriol i ddod a bydd cyllidebau'n cael eu 
tynhau.  Mae'r adroddiad yn dangos rheolaeth ariannol effeithiol o fewn yr Awdurdod a 
diolchodd yr Aelodau i'r holl staff am eu hymdrechion o ran bodloni gofynion arbedion.  

 
           Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad yn 

cael eu cymeradwyo.  Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 
 
  PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn Adroddiad y Swyddog: - 
 

(i) i nodi'r adroddiad; 
 
(ii)  i gytuno â'r cynnig i ddefnyddio cronfa wrth gefn Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol     

sy'n gyfanswm o £248 mil, fel y manylir yn 4.4.9 o'r adroddiad, i ariannu nifer o 
swyddi dros-dro i gymryd rhan mewn prosiectau trawsnewidiol; 

 
(iii) i gymeradwyo rhyddhau £800 mil o'r £1.6miliwn sydd yng nghronfa wrth gefn 

rheoli gwastraff i wrthbwyso pwysau costau yn rhannol yn 2016/17; 
 
(iv) i argymell ni ddylid clustnodi'r tanwariant o £230 mil ar gyfer Mynwentydd ac yn 

lle hynny ei gynnwys o fewn y gyllideb sylfaenol i wrthbwyso'n rhannol pwysau 
cyllidebol eraill o fewn yr Is-adran Gwasanaethau Cymunedol a Hamdden  

 
 

6. TIR YM MAES PARCIO STRYD Y FELIN, RHISGA 
 

 Darparodd yr adroddiad fanylion y cynnig i waredu tir yn Stryd y Felin, i'r Grŵp Pobl ar gyfer y 
Cabinet. Hysbyswyd yr Aelodau fod y tir ym Maes Parcio Stryd y Felin, Rhisga yn ffurfio rhan 
o safle ailddatblygu posibl a nodwyd yn y Cynllun Gweithredu Canol Tref Rhisga a 
Phontymister (Cymeradwywyd 2014).  Mae'r safle mewn lleoliad amlwg ar y gyffordd gyda 
Stryd y Felin a'r Stryd Fasnachol, wrth y fynedfa ddeheuol i'r dref.  Mae Pobl (Landlord 
Cymdeithasol Cofrestredig) wedi cysylltu â'r ddau dirfeddiannwr (y Cyngor a thrydydd parti), 
gyda'r bwriad o ail-ddatblygu'r safle cyfan gyda thai fforddiadwy a thai â chymorth. 

 
 Bydd cael gwared ar y safle yn cynhyrchu derbyniad cyfalaf, yn ogystal ag arbedion refeniw i'r 

Cyngor a'i bartneriaid statudol.  Rhagwelir y bydd yr arbedion sylweddol mewn costau 
rhagamcanol dros gyfnod o 20 mlynedd o gyflwyno'r cynllun tai â chymorth.  Yn ogystal, mae 

Page 2



  

angen sylweddol am dai fforddiadwy ledled y Fwrdeistref Sirol.  Mae Pobl wedi paratoi cynllun 
ar gyfer y safle, gan nodi cymysgedd o eiddo sy'n ceisio mynd i'r afael ag anghenion tai o 
fewn yr ardal sy'n cynnwys prosiect llety byw â chymorth rhanbarthol. 

 
 Nododd y Cabinet y cynhaliwyd cryn ymgynghori o fewn yr ardal a chodwyd rhai 

gwrthwynebiadau o ganlyniad i'r angen am faes parcio a'r defnydd o'r maes parcio fel man 
gollwng ar gyfer yr ysgol fabanod.  Yn ogystal, mynegwyd pryderon ynghylch pwysau 
cynyddol ar yr ysgol a darpariaeth iechyd yn yr ardal.  Sicrhaodd y Swyddogion yr Aelodau 
bod yna ddigon o barcio yn yr ardal, gyda'r defnydd o feysydd parcio eraill a pharcio ar y 
stryd.  Wrth gyfeirio at y ddarpariaeth ysgolion ac iechyd, nodwyd bod digon o leoedd ysgol a 
bod meddygfa Wellspring wedi cadarnhau eu bod wedi cynyddu capasiti. 

 
 Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad yn 

cael eu cymeradwyo.  Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 
 
  PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn Adroddiad y Swyddog: - 
 

(i) i drosglwyddo'r tir a ddangosir ag ymyl du ar y cynllun gyda'r adroddiad am 
£50,000 (ac fel arall ar delerau i'w cytuno) i'r Grŵp Pobl; 

 
(ii) bod telerau manwl y gwaredu yn cael ei ddirprwyo i'r Pennaeth Gwasanaethau 

Eiddo ar y cyd â'r Aelod Cabinet Perfformiad a Rheoli Asedau, at y dibenion a 
nodir yn yr adroddiad.  

 
 

7. CYMERADWYO'R LLAWLYFR AROLYGU PRIFFYRDD 

 
 Mae'r adroddiad, a gafodd ei gyflwyno i'r Pwyllgor Craffu Adfywio a'r Amgylchedd ar 1af 

Tachwedd 2016, yn amlinellu cefndir a chynnwys y Cynllun Cynnal a Chadw Priffyrdd a'r 
Llawlyfr Arolygu Priffyrdd ac yn esbonio'r broses y mae'r rhain yn cael eu hadolygu'n fewnol 
yn flynyddol ac yn ceisio cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet. 

 
 Roedd yr adroddiad yn amlinellu bod gan y Cyngor ddyletswydd statudol i gadw rhwydwaith 

ffyrdd diogel fel y nodir o dan Ddeddf Priffyrdd 1980.  Mae'r Cynllun Cynnal a Chadw Priffyrdd 
yn un o dri chynllun sy'n ffurfio'r Fframwaith Grŵp Gweithrediadau Priffyrdd, y lleill oedd y 
Cynllun Rheoli Asedau Priffyrdd a'r Cynllun Gweithrediadau Priffyrdd.  Mae'r Llawlyfr Arolygu 
Priffyrdd yn ffurfio rhan o'r Cynllun Cynnal a Chadw Priffyrdd ac mae'n nodi'r prosesau a'r 
gweithdrefnau i archwilio, adrodd ac ymgymryd â'r camau angenrheidiol a chofnodi'r gwaith a 
wneir ar asedau ffyrdd cerbydau a throedffyrdd.  Mae'n ffurfio sail amddiffyniad cyfreithiol y 
Cyngor yn erbyn hawliadau yswiriant, ar gyfer anaf personol a difrod i eiddo/cerbydau, a 
wnaed ar y briffordd. 

 
 Nodwyd bod y Llawlyfr Arolygu Priffyrdd wedi ei rannu'n 4 rhan, sy'n cynnwys cefndir, 

gwybodaeth polisi a gweithdrefnau arolygu.  Mae'r Llawlyfr Arolygu Priffyrdd yn destun 
adolygiad blynyddol, roedd angen adolygu nifer o adranau, sef amseroedd ymateb ar gyfer 
namau priffyrdd, amlder arolygu a meini prawf ymyrryd, a oedd yn gofyn i'r Pwyllgor Craffu i'w 
hystyried. 

 
 Cymeradwyodd y Pwyllgor Craffu'r adroddiad ac argymhellodd ei dderbyn gan y Cabinet. 
 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad yn cael eu 

cymeradwyo.  Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 
 
  PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn Adroddiad y Swyddog: - 
 

(i) gadw'r targedau 2 awr, 24 awr a 28 diwrnod ar gyfer cynnal diffygion priffyrdd 
gyda'r rheolaeth ar gyfer lefel presennol y gwasanaeth yn cael ei fonitro'n agos, 
yn enwedig y targedau 28 diwrnod ar gyfer Blaenoriaeth 3 (nam a nodwyd nad 
yw'n frys); 

Page 3



  

 
(ii) i gadw lefelau arolygu presennol; 
 
(iii) i gadw'r meini prawf cyfredol ar gyfer ymyrraeth ar ddiffygion ffyrdd a 

throedffyrdd; 
 
(iv) y dylid cymeradwyo'r Llawlyfr Arolygu Priffyrdd fel y'i hatodwyd i'r adroddiad, yn  

ddarostyngedig i'r uchod. 
 

 

ARGYMHELLION I'R CYNGOR 
 
 

8. CYMERADWYO CYNLLUN RHEOLI ASEDAU PRIFFYRDD 

 

 Mae'r adroddiad, a gafodd ei gyflwyno i'r Pwyllgor Craffu Adfywio a'r Amgylchedd ar 1af 
Tachwedd 2016, yn amlinellu cefndir a chynnwys y Fframwaith Grŵp Gweithrediadau 
Priffyrdd a Chynllun Rheoli Asedau Priffyrdd Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili a'r broses a 
ddefnyddir ar gyfer ei adolygu'n fewnol yn flynyddol. Roedd yr adroddiad yn gofyn am 
gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet, cyn ei gyflwyno i'r Cyngor. 

 
 Mae gan y Cyngor ddyletswydd statudol i gadw rhwydwaith ffyrdd diogel fel y nodir o dan 

Ddeddf Priffyrdd 1980.  Mae'r Cynllun Rheoli Asedau Priffyrdd CBSC yn un o dri chynllun sy'n 
ffurfio Fframwaith Grŵp Gweithrediadau Priffyrdd, y lleill yw'r Cynllun Cynnal a Chadw 
Priffyrdd a'r Cynllun Gweithrediadau Priffyrdd. Mae'r Cynllun Rheoli Asedau Priffyrdd yn ddull 
strategol sy'n nodi'r holl asedau priffyrdd sy'n gyfrifoldeb yr awdurdod priffyrdd (y Cyngor).  
Mae'n asesu statws priffyrdd a'u cyflwr, ac yn penderfynu a gweithredu'r drefn gynnal a chadw 
mwyaf addas o fewn y paramedrau cost mwyaf effeithlon. 

 
 Nodwyd bod y Cynllun Rheoli Asedau Priffyrdd yn ddogfen gwaith sydd wedi'i rhannu'n 4 

rhan, sy'n rhestru'r asedau priffyrdd gyda'r wybodaeth a'r data perthnasol ar gyfer eu gofynion 
adnabod a chynnal a chadw, ac mae'n cael ei ddiweddaru drwy nifer o sianeli cyfathrebu ac 
adborth.   

 
 Cymeradwywyd yr adroddiad gan y Pwyllgor Craffu ac argymhellwyd ei dderbyn gan y 

Cabinet a'r Cyngor. 
  
            Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhellion yn yr adroddiad yn 

cael eu cymeradwyo.  Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi dwylo. 
 
  PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn Adroddiad y Swyddog: - 
 

(i) i gymeradwyo'r cynnwys a'r broses adolygu flynyddol ar gyfer y Cynllun Rheoli 
Asedau Priffyrdd a'r agweddau allweddol a gynhwysir ynddo (sef lleoli'r Cynllun 
Rheoli Asedau Priffyrdd o fewn y Fframwaith Grŵp Gweithrediadau Priffyrdd, y 
sylw a roddir i bob agwedd ar reoli asedau priffyrdd gan y Cynllun Rheoli 
Asedau Priffyrdd, a'r nodi o sianelau cyfathrebu priodol mewn perthynas ag 
asedau priffyrdd); 

 
(ii) i gymeradwyo’r Cynllun Rheoli Asedau Priffyrdd, fel yr atodwyd at yr adroddiad, 

yn ddarostyngedig i'r uchod. 
 

 
Terfynwyd y cyfarfod am 2.40pm 

 
Cymeradwywyd a Llofnodwyd ei fod yn gofnod cywir yn amodol ar unrhyw gywiriadau a 
wnaed yn y cyfarfod a gynhelir ar 30ain Tachwedd 2016. 

 
____________________ 

Page 4



  

CADEIRYDD 

Page 5



Page 6

Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



CABINET – 30TH NOVEMBER, 2016

SUBJECT: PROPOSED RHYMNEY 3-18 ALL THROUGH SCHOOL

REPORT BY: CHIEF EDUCATION OFFICER

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To seek approval from Members to commence a consultative process to establish a Rhymney 
3 -18 school.

2. LINKS TO STRATEGY

2.1 The report links directly to the Education for Life, sustainability and regeneration strategies, 
particularly in the context of provision of modern fit for purpose teaching and learning 
environments.

2.2 The report contributes to the Well-being Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations 
Act (Wales) 2016. In particular, as follows :

A prosperous Wales as it details improved outcomes for learners, and reduces impact of 
poverty if people are able to gain skills to gain employment. 

A healthier Wales, supporting vulnerable learners can improve their well-being and add 
educational achievement.

A more equal Wales, a society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what 
their background is; and.

A Wales of cohesive communities (in the context of improving quality of life with attractive, 
viable, safe and well connected communities).

3. THE REPORT

3.1 The Council is committed to developing and establishing innovative approaches to teaching 
and learning.  This includes securing better outcomes through increased continuity in pupil 
learning and a joined-up strategy to learning, pastoral care and support.

3.2 Meetings took place in the summer term 2016 with representatives of the following :-

Governors of Abertysswg Primary, Pontlottyn Primary and Rhymney Comprehensive 

Schools

Local Council Members

Senior officers of Caerphilly County Borough Council.

Those present supported the proposal of establishing the Rhymney 3-18 school.

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 4

Page 7



3.3 It is now proposed that the Council seeks to establish a Rhymney 3-18 school.  The new 3 -18 
school would incorporate the new Abertysswg/Pontlottyn Primary School and the existing 
Rhymney Comprehensive on their sites.  No additional build is proposed specifically for this 
proposal.

3.4 To progress this proposal, the Council is required to carry out a statutory consultation 
process.  A consultation document will be produced and circulated widely to provide an 
opportunity for stakeholders to contribute to this process.

3.5 The proposed timescales for the statutory process are outlined in Appendix 1.

3.6 It is envisaged the consultation process will take place over a 6 week period commencing 3rd
January and ending 16th February, 2017.  There are a number of consultation events 
proposed where the proposal will be explained and allow questions.  These details will be
included within the consultation document.

3.7 Following consultation, CCBC’s Cabinet will consider the views expressed and then decide 
whether to proceed with the proposal.  If the decision is taken to proceed, a statutory notice 
will be published.  The statutory notice will last for 28 days from the date of notice and enables 
people to express their views in the form of supporting or objecting to the proposal.

3.8 CCBC’s Cabinet will make the final decision whether to proceed, unless the decision is called 
in for review by the Welsh Government, e.g. a governing body refers the proposal to Welsh 
Ministers.

4. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Impact Assessment screening has been completed in accordance with the Council’s Strategic 
Equality Plan and no potential for unlawful discrimination has been initially identified affecting 
one or more of the target equality groups.

4.2 This will require more detailed work as the proposal evolves.  An Equalities Impact 
Assessment will be formulated during the formal consultation process and will evolve through 
the process to establishing a 3-18 school which is anticipated for 1 January 2018.

5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

5.1 The proposed all through school was developed having regard to long term needs of children 
and young people, attempting to improve and prevent poor life chances.

5.2 The report contributes to the 5 ways of working in the context of a long term strategy and 
vision, (closely aligning with the principles of the recent Donaldson report and provide a more 
coherent basis for learning, teaching and assessment); integration approach (more closely 
aligning the primary and secondary phases) preventing problems occurring or getting worse 
(improving transition) and collaborating to meet the objectives. 

5.3 This report contributes to the Well-being Goals and in particular in the context of :

Corporate planning, 

Risk management,

Workforce planning,

Financial planning, and

Asset management

Page 8



6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 It is anticipated that the formulas of both the primary and secondary schools would be 
combined to establish the all through school budget. As such, there would be no anticipated 
change to the level of Council resources and can be met from existing budgets.

7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 There will be some changes to the staffing of the all through school but these are expected to 
be minimal. This process will be followed in accordance with the Council’s HR policies.

8. CONSULTATIONS

8.1 The draft report was distributed as detailed below.  All comments received have been 
reflected in the report.

9. RECOMMENDATIONS

9.1 Members are requested to agree to commence a consultative process to establish a 
Rhymney 3-18 school.

10. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1 To seek views in providing continuity in transition and curriculum planning and developing
stronger links with other feeder primary schools.

11. STATUTORY POWER

11.1 School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013
The School Organisation Code.  Welsh Government (2013)

Author:   Bleddyn Hopkins, Assistant Director, 21ST Century Schools
E-mail:    hopkib@caerphilly.gov.uk
Consultees: Chris Burns, Interim Chief Executive

Nicole Scammell, Acting Director of Corporate Services & S151
Dave Street, Corporate Director – Social Services
Christina Harrhy, Corporate Director - Communities
Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer
Councillor Derek Havard, Cabinet Member, Education 
Councillor Gaynor Oliver (Pontlottyn)
Councillor John Bevan (Moriah)
Councillor David Harse (Moriah)
Acting Headteacher, Abertysswg Primary School
Acting Headteacher, Pontlottyn Primary School
Headteacher, Rhymney Comprehensive School
Gail Williams, Interim Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer
Lynne Donovan, Acting Head of Human Resources and 
Organisational Development
Jane Southcombe, Financial Services Manager
Kathryn Peters, Corporate Policy Manager

Page 9



Appendix 1 Proposed Timescale : Rhymney 3-18 All Through School

Background Papers:   21st Century Schools files
Council report 23 November 2010 (SOP)
Council report 3 November 2011 (SOP2)
School Organisation Code (2013)

Page 10



Appendix 1

Rhymney 3-18 All Through School

Proposed Timescales

Description Proposed Date

Cabinet (to seek agreement to commence statutory 
process)

30
th

November 2016

Formal (6 week) Consultation Process 3
rd

January 2017 to 16
th

February, 2017

Education for Life Scrutiny Committee to consider 
outcome of consultation process prior to Cabinet 
consideration.

27
th

February, 2017.

Cabinet (to consider the results of the consultation 
process and decide on way forward)

15
th

March, 2017

Publication of Statutory Notice
(in the event that Cabinet agree this on 15

th
March, 

2017)

24
th

April 2017 to 21
st

May 2017

Final Decision by Cabinet 21
st

June, 2017

3-18 All Through School established (in the event 
that Cabinet agree this on 21

st
June 2017)

1
st

January, 2018

Page 11



Page 12

Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



CABINET – 30TH NOVEMBER, 2016

SUBJECT: CWMCARN HIGH SCHOOL – PLANNED CLOSURE

REPORT BY: CHIEF EDUCATION OFFICER

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To update Members in relation to the planned closure of Cwmcarn High School and 
associated developments.

2. LINKS TO STRATEGY

2.1 The report links directly to the Education for Life, sustainability and regeneration strategies, 
particularly in the context of provision of modern fit for purpose teaching and learning 
environments.

2.2 The report contributes to the Well-being Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations 
Act (Wales) 2016. In particular, as follows :

A prosperous Wales as it details improved outcomes for learners, 

A healthier Wales, supporting vulnerable learners can improve their well-being and add 
educational achievement.

A more equal Wales, a society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what 
their background is; and.

A Wales of cohesive communities (in the context of improving quality of life with attractive, 
viable, safe and well connected communities).

3. THE REPORT

3.1 At their meeting on 27th June, 2016, the Governing Body of Cwmcarn High School regrettably 
made the very sad and difficult decision to seek to close the school.  This is despite their best 
efforts to keep the school open and due to the unprecedented circumstances (asbestos, 
relocation, falling pupil rolls) that the school has found itself in since 2012.  The Chair of
Governors wrote to the Welsh Government (WG) on 29th June to advise of their decision.

3.2 This decision was sought in line with Section 80 of The Schools Standards and Organisation 
(Wales) Act 2013.

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 5

Page 13



3.3 Welsh Government replied to the Chair of Governors on 5 July 2016 advising for the above 
closure proposal to take place, the Welsh Ministers will require sufficient information to 
carefully consider the request. In essence, the request by Welsh Government was for more 
detailed information akin to when a school closure is proposed.

3.4 The Chair of Governors submitted this detailed information to Welsh Government by letter 
dated 20 July, 2016.

3.5 Welsh Government’s Cabinet Secretary for Education wrote to the Chair of Governors on 5 
October 2016 advising that she had consented to the Governing Body issuing notice under 
the Schools Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 to discontinue the school in view of 
the Governing Body’s decision on 27 June.

3.6 The Chair of Governors, on behalf of the Governing Body, wrote to Welsh Government’s
Cabinet Secretary for Education on 10 October, 2016, to give Welsh Ministers two years 
written notice of their intention to discontinue the school. The Council was also informed of 
this decision at that time by letter.

3.7 In order to plan for potential closure, the Council submitted a £3m business case to Welsh 
Government (21st century schools) on 21 July, 2016.  This was agreed by the School Strategy 
Board and proposed:

additional classrooms at Newbridge School to manage the initial bulge and to 
accommodate any Cwmcarn High School pupils who advised that they wished to transfer 
there at the date of decision to discontinue Cwmcarn High School, and 

undertake demolition works at both Cwmcarn High school and Newbridge School.

3.8 The business planning process was considered by the 21st Century Schools Team in Welsh 
Government. Welsh Government’s Cabinet Secretary for Education subsequently approved 
the business case, in principle, on 14 September, 2016. This decision was without prejudice 
to the decision regarding the Governing Body’s request under section 80 of the School 
Standards & Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 to discontinue Cwmcarn High School and is 
subject to the Council agreeing to making a 50% contribution towards the capital investment 
costs of the works outlined in the business case to Newbridge and Cwmcarn Schools in the 
sum of £1.5 million.

3.9 There is still considerable work required over the next 2 years to facilitate the Governing 
Body’s decision to close Cwmcarn High School, e.g., planning regarding school budget, 
staffing issues and pupil admission arrangements.

3.10 The Council, along with the Education Achievement Service (EAS) and the school, are 
working collaboratively to ensure the pupils’ education is not disadvantaged.

3.11 It is proposed to provide further update reports as the detail emerges in relation to the 
Governing Body’s decision.

4. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Impact Assessment screening has been completed in accordance with the Council’s Strategic 
Equality Plan and no potential for unlawful discrimination has been initially identified affecting 
one or more of the target equality groups.

Page 14



5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

5.1 The decision of the Governing Body has prompted the Council to plan and have regard to 
long term needs of children and young people, attempting to improve and prevent poor life 
chances.

5.2 The report contributes to the 5 ways of working in the context of a long term strategy and 
vision, integration approach, preventing problems occurring or getting worse (limited 
alternative school places) and collaborating to meet the objectives. 

5.3 This report contributes to the Well-being Goals and in particular in the context of :

Corporate planning, 

Risk management,

Workforce planning,

Financial planning, and

Asset management

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 Cwmcarn High School has been experiencing budgetary problems in recent years and that 
has been exacerbated by recent dramatic falling rolls.  It is estimated that the accumulated 
deficit will be in the region of £1million when the school is discontinued.  Every effort will be 
made to minimise this deficit amount over the next 2 years.

6.2 The Council will need to consider setting aside an amount of £1.5 million to meet its 50% 
share of the £3 million cost for the capital investment proposed to Newbridge and Cwmcarn 
Schools.  Proposals for utilising Council’s reserves are due to be considered by Cabinet.

7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 The Council has been working closely with Cwmcarn High School and been successful to 
date in seeking alternative employment for Cwmcarn High School staff.  Other secondary 
schools have been extremely supportive in facilitating these arrangements.  This process will 
be ongoing for the next 2 years and will be undertaken in accordance with appropriate Council 
HR policies.

7.2 The Headteacher of Newbridge School has continued in her role as Executive Headteacher of 
Cwmcarn High School.  This arrangement is working well.

8. CONSULTATIONS

8.1 The draft report was distributed as detailed below.  All comments received have been 
reflected in the report.

9. RECOMMENDATIONS

9.1 Members are requested to :-

note the update in respect of the Governing Body’s decision to discontinue the school in 2 
years;

agree the capital investment in relation to Newbridge and Cwmcarn Schools and allocating 
£1.5 million as CCBC’s 50% match funding.

Page 15



agree that officers continue to work with the Governing Body and staff at the school 
regarding the planning of the school budget, staffing and admission issues; and

note that regular update reports will be provided as the situation develops.

10. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1 To provide an update in relation to the planned closure of Cwmcarn High School and to agree 
a way forward for the next 2 years.

11. STATUTORY POWER

11.1 School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013
The School Organisation Code.  Welsh Government (2013)

Author:   Bleddyn Hopkins, Assistant Director, 21st Century Schools
E-mail:    hopkib@caerphilly.gov.uk
Consultees: Chris Burns, Interim Chief Executive

Nicole Scammell, Acting Director of Corporate Services & S151
Dave Street, Corporate Director – Social Services
Christina Harrhy, Corporate Director - Communities
Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer
Councillor Derek Havard, Cabinet Member, Education 
Gail Williams, Interim Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer
Lynne Donovan, Acting Head of Human Resources and 

Organisational Development
Jane Southcombe, Financial Services Manager
Kathryn Peters, Corporate Policy Manager
Headteacher, Risca Community Comprehensive School
Headteacher, Newbridge School (also Executive Headteacher of Cwmcarn High 
School).

Background Papers
21st Century Schools files
Council report 23 November 2010 (SOP)
Council report 3 November 2011 (SOP2)
School Organisation Code (2013)
Business Case (SOP) July 2016

Page 16



CABINET – 30TH NOVEMBER 2016

SUBJECT: DRAFT BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR 2017/18

REPORT BY: ACTING DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES & SECTION 151 
OFFICER

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To present Cabinet with details of draft budget proposals for the 2017/18 financial year to 
allow for a period of consultation prior to a final decision in February 2017.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 The report provides details of draft budget proposals based on the Welsh Government (WG)
Provisional 2017/18 Local Government Financial Settlement.

2.2 The report also provides details of draft savings proposals for 2017/18 totalling £8.653m.

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 The budget setting process encompasses all the resources used by the Council to deliver 
services and meet priorities.

3.2 Effective financial planning and the setting of a balanced budget support the following Well-
being Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015: -

A prosperous Wales.

A resilient Wales.

A healthier Wales.

A more equal Wales.

A Wales of cohesive communities.

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language.

A globally responsible Wales.

4. THE REPORT

4.1 Headline Issues in Provisional Settlement

4.1.1 Published on the 19th October 2016, the key points of the WG Provisional 2017/18 Local 
Government Financial Settlement are the following: -

An overall net increase of 0.1% in the Aggregate External Finance (Revenue Support 
Grant (RSG) and Redistributed Non-Domestic Rates) on an all-Wales basis. This varies 
by Authority due to the funding formula and ranges from minus 0.5% to plus 0.9%.

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 6

Page 17



For Caerphilly CBC there is a reduction of 0.3% in the Aggregate External Finance i.e. a
cash decrease of £0.608m.

There is £262k funding in the provisional settlement for Caerphilly CBC for new 
responsibilities in Social Services. This funding has been allocated due to WG policy 
changes that will result in a loss of income from service user financial contributions to 
the cost of their care.

There have been four transfers into the settlement totalling £0.185m and one transfer 
out of £0.062m. Details are provided in paragraph 4.1.2.

Changes to other passported grants in the provisional settlement result in a net 
reduction of £0.283m as detailed in paragraph 4.1.3.

No indicative settlement figures have been provided by WG at this stage for future years 
beyond 2017/18.

The capital allocations available to Caerphilly CBC in the RSG and from the General 
Capital Grant have increased by £19k from the previous year.

4.1.2 Table 1 provides details of transfers in and out of the WG financial settlement: -

Table 1 – Transfers In/Out 2017/18

£m

Transfers In: -

Delivering Transformation Grant 0.171

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 0.010

Blue Badge Scheme Additional Funding 0.001

Food Hygiene Rating Scheme 0.003

Transfers Out: -

Education Workforce Council Teacher Registration Fees (0.062)

TOTAL 0.123

4.1.3 Table 2 provides details of changes to other passported grants included in the WG financial 
settlement: -

Table 2 – Other Passported Grants 2017/18

£m

Integrated Family Support Service (0.173)

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) (0.201)

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 0.091

TOTAL (0.283)

4.1.4 As in previous years, the adjustments in Tables 1 and 2 (both the increases and decreases in 
funding) will be passed directly to those services that they relate to.

4.2 2017/18 Draft Budget Proposals

4.2.1 The proposals contained within this report will deliver a balanced budget for 2017/18 on the 
basis that Council Tax is increased by 1%. Table 3 provides a summary: -

Table 3 – Summary

Paragraph Description £m £m

4.2.2 Whole Authority Cost Pressures 2.745

4.2.3 Inescapable Service Pressures 6.186

4.1.1 Reduction in WG Funding 0.608

4.3.1 Draft Savings Proposals 2017/18 8.653

4.4.1 Council Tax Uplift (1%) 0.886

TOTAL 9.539 9.539

Page 18



4.2.2 The whole Authority cost pressures totalling £2.745m are set out in Table 4 below (cost 
pressures for schools are excluded as these will be funded through a proposed increase of 
1.25% in the funding provided to schools): -

Table 4 – Whole Authority Cost Pressures

£m

Pay – Weighted average increase of 1.2% 1.367

Living Wage (assumed increase of 20p per hour) 0.148

Non-pay inflation at 1% (net of 1% fees and charges increase) 1.128

New Responsibilities 0.262

Transfers in/out and other passported grants (0.160)

TOTAL 2.745

4.2.3 It is incumbent upon Council to set a realistic budget each year. Table 5 provides details of 
the 2017/18 inescapable service commitments/pressures that have been identified and 
require consideration in respect of funding: -

Table 5 – Inescapable Service Pressures and Other Service Commitments

£m

Council Tax Reduction Scheme additional liability 0.148

Apprenticeship Levy 0.454

Additional holiday pay (staff working variable hours) 0.425

Welsh Language Standards 0.250

Tir-yr-Berth Depot – Running costs 0.075

Increase in funding for schools (1.25%) 1.334

Social Services cost pressures 3.500

TOTAL 6.186

4.2.4 Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) – The additional liability of £148k arises from a 1% 
increase in the CTRS budget in line with the proposed increase in Council Tax.

4.2.5 Apprenticeship Levy – This levy will be introduced by the UK Government form April 2017 
and will be applicable in Wales. All employers with a payroll cost of greater than £3m per 
annum will be subject to a 0.5% levy on total payroll costs. The purpose of the levy is to fund 
traineeships but it is currently not clear how this will operate in Wales and how the funding will
be allocated to WG. The estimated cost of the levy for Caerphilly CBC is £454k per annum.

4.2.6 Additional holiday Pay for staff working variable hours – Negotiations are ongoing to 
ensure that the Council is compliant with recent case law concerning annual leave payments 
for employees that receive payments in addition to their basic salary. An initial estimate of 
£425k has been calculated as the cost of these potential additional payments. It is proposed 
that this funding should be held corporately in the first instance until the actual impact on 
service budgets has been established.

4.2.7 Welsh Language Standards – Significant financial pressures are being experienced in this 
area and to ensure compliance with the Standards it will be necessary to provide additional 
resources, particularly in relation to translation costs.

4.2.8 Tir-yr-Berth Depot – Following the transfer of various teams into and out of the Depot there 
is a resultant shortfall of £75k in the running costs budget largely due to a loss of income from 
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA).

4.2.9 Increase in funding for schools – An increase of 1.25% is proposed for schools totalling 
£1.334m. This increase will fully fund pay and non-pay inflationary increases and will also 
fund the majority of the cost of the impact of the Apprenticeship Levy on schools.

Page 19



4.2.10 Social Services cost pressures - Cabinet will recall that the 2016/17 budget approved by 
Council on the 24th February 2016 included a contingency of £2.5m for Social Services cost 
pressures. This contingency was initially held corporately but the full £2.5m has now been 
permanently transferred into the Social Services base budget. This has been necessary to 
fund increases in fees for external care providers due in the main to the introduction of the 
National Living Wage, and additional costs arising from increasing demand for services in 
both Adult and Children’s Services. It is proposed that a further sum of £3.5m should be 
allocated in the 2017/18 budget to meet ongoing financial pressures for Social Services. 

4.3 2017/18 Draft Savings Proposals

4.3.1 Although the Provisional 2017/18 Financial Settlement is much better than originally 
anticipated, the emerging cost pressures identified in this report result in a net savings 
requirement of £8.653m. Table 6 provides details of the draft savings proposals that, 
alongside the proposed increase of 1% in Council Tax, will enable a balanced budget to be 
achieved.

Table 6 – Draft Savings Proposals 2017/18

Description 2017/18
Saving

£m

Savings in advance brought forward from 2016/17 1.815

Full-Year impact of approved 2016/17 savings 0.146

2017/18 savings proposals: -

‘Nil impact’ savings 3.037

Bowling Green rationalisation 0.113

Treasury Management – Review of MRP policy 3.500

Pension contributions for former Authorities 0.042

TOTAL 8.653

4.3.2 Savings in advance brought forward from 2016/17 - At its meeting on the 24th February 
2016 Council approved a package of savings totalling £11.117m for the 2016/17 financial 
year. This exceeded the total savings required to balance the 2016/17 budget resulting in 
savings in advance of £1.815m. Council agreed that for 2016/17 only this excess sum should 
be set aside in an earmarked reserve to meet cost pressures in dry recyclable waste and to 
provide one-off match-funding to support carbon management initiatives. The £1.815m 
savings will now be required to help balance the budget for 2017/18.

4.3.3 Full-Year impact of approved 2016/17 savings - Some of the approved savings for 2016/17 
only had a part-year impact and the full-year effect of these savings will now provide an 
additional £146k to support the 2017/18 budget.

4.3.4 2017/18 ‘Nil Impact’ savings - As part of the extensive work previously undertaken to 
prepare for anticipated savings in future years, savings totalling £3.037m were identified for 
2017/18 that do not have a direct impact on services users or the public. These proposals 
consist in the main of vacancy management, budget realignment and minor changes to 
service provision.

4.3.5 Bowling Green rationalisation - At its meeting on the 2nd March 2016, Cabinet agreed 
proposals on the rationalisation of Bowling Greens which will deliver savings of £113k to 
support the 2017/18 budget. The approved changes include the following: -

Page 20



The closure of Abertridwr Bowling Green and subsequent release of one post.

Removal of the Park Ranger service. 

The operation of 20 bowling greens at a reduced maintenance specification with the 
subsequent release of three members of staff.

Bowling Clubs to undertake non-specialist green maintenance tasks.

Payment of a grant to Bowling Clubs.

Clubs to retain income from fees and charges.

4.3.6 Treasury Management - Review of MRP policy - A saving of £3.5m is proposed through 
undertaking a review of the Authority’s Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy. MRP is a 
very technical concept but its core purpose is to charge revenue accounts over a period of 
time with the cost of assets financed through debt. There are a number of different ways that 
this charge can be calculated but in simple terms the current approach adopted within 
Caerphilly CBC essentially charges the revenue account annually over a period of 25 years. 
The revised approach being undertaken by a number of Local Authorities links the annual 
MRP charge to a more realistic assessment of the lives of assets funded through debt. For 
example, it would not be unreasonable to assume that a school would have a useful life of up 
to 70 years.

Staff in Corporate Finance have been working with our Treasury Advisors, Arlingclose, and a 
report on proposed changes to the MRP policy is being prepared for the Special Policy &
Resources Scrutiny Committee on the 7th December 2016. The main thrust of this report will 
be to change the policy to reflect average asset lives of 50 years. This effectively spreads the
MRP charge over 50 years instead of 25, thus reducing the annual charge to the revenue 
account and realising significant savings to support the MTFP. 

MRP is an element of the Treasury Management Strategy which is approved annually by full 
Council. The proposed change to the MRP policy is therefore of interest to all Members. With 
this in mind a Members’ Seminar has been scheduled for the 12th January 2017. This will 
provide an opportunity for all Members to be fully briefed on the proposed changes and 
Arlingclose will be in attendance to assist with dealing with questions that Members may raise. 
A report on the proposed changes will subsequently be presented to Cabinet on the 18th

January 2017 and then Council on the 24th January 2017. 

4.3.7 Pension contribution for former Authorities – Commitments against this budget are 
reducing over time and a budget reduction of £42k is achievable for 2017/18.

4.3.8 Cabinet is asked to endorse the proposed package of savings totalling £8.653m and to agree 
that the draft budget proposals contained in this report should now be subject to a period of 
consultation prior to final 2017/18 budget proposals being presented to Cabinet and Council in 
February 2017.

4.4 Council Tax Implications 2017/18

4.4.1 The draft budget proposals within this report include a proposed increase of 1% in Council 
Tax for the 2017/18 financial year. This will increase the Caerphilly CBC Band D precept from 
£1,001.94 to £1,011.96 i.e. an annual increase of £10.02 or weekly increase of £0.19.

5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

5.1 Effective financial planning is a key element in ensuring that the Well-being Goals within the 
Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 are met.

Page 21



6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

6.1 An EIA screening has been completed in accordance with the Council's Strategic Equality 
Plan and supplementary guidance.  No potential for unlawful discrimination and/or low level or 
minor negative impact has been identified regarding this report; therefore a full EIA has not 
been carried out.

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 As detailed throughout the report.

8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 Where staff reductions are required the Council will firstly try to achieve this through ‘natural 
wastage’ and not filling vacancies. However, where this is not possible then every opportunity 
will be taken to find alternative employment through the Council’s redeployment policy. The 
Council will also utilise other policies as appropriate e.g. voluntary severance.

9. CONSULTATIONS

9.1 The draft savings proposals for 2017/18 continue to follow the principles previously agreed by 
Council which in essence seek to limit the impact of savings on front-line services. The 
proposed savings for 2017/18 will have limited (if any) impact on the public so the extensive 
consultation process that has been followed in recent years will not be necessary. Steps will 
be taken to consult and engage with key stakeholders but this will be a more general 
approach than last year as we do not have long lists of saving proposals to consult upon.

9.2 Special Scrutiny Committee meetings have been scheduled throughout December 2016 to 
provide Members with the opportunity to comment upon the draft 2017/18 budget proposals.

10. RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1 Cabinet is asked to: -

10.1.1 Endorse the draft 2017/18 budget proposals including the proposed savings totalling 
£8.653m.

10.1.2 Support the proposal to increase Council Tax by 1% for the 2017/18 financial year to ensure 
that a balanced budget is achieved (Council Tax Band D being set at £1,011.96).

10.1.3 Agree that the draft budget proposals should now be subject to consultation prior to final 
2017/18 budget proposals being presented to Cabinet and Council in February 2017.

11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

11.1 Council is required annually to approve proposals to set a balanced budget and agree a 
Council Tax rate.

11.2 Council is required to put in place a sound and prudent financial framework to support service 
delivery.

Page 22



12. STATUTORY POWER

12.1 The Local Government Acts 1998 and 2003.
Author: Stephen Harris, Interim Head of Corporate Finance

E-mail: harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk Tel: 01443 863022
Consultees: Corporate Management Team

Gail Williams, Interim Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer
Cllr Keith Reynolds, Leader
Cllr Barbara Jones, Deputy Leader & Cabinet Member for Corporate Services

Background Papers:
Provisional Local Government Financial Settlement (19th October 2016)
Council (24/02/16) - Budget Proposals 2016/17 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy 2016/2021

Page 23



Page 24

Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



CABINET – 30TH NOVEMBER 2016

SUBJECT: CAPITAL BIDS

REPORT BY: ACTING DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES & SECTION 151 
OFFICER

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This report seeks Cabinet approval of proposals to utilise the capital earmarked reserve of 
£7.9m that was agreed as part of the Capital Programme approved by Council at its meeting 
on the 24th February 2016.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 The report provides details of bids that have been prioritised for utilising the £7.9m capital 
earmarked reserve approved by Council at its meeting on the 24th February 2016.

2.2 The total value of the prioritised bids is £8.763m which exceeds the capital earmarked reserve 
by £863k. It is proposed that the additional £863k is funded from a one-off insurance rebate 
received from the contractor for the Sirhowy Enterprise Way (SEW) PFI scheme.

3. LINKS TO STRATEGY

3.1 The capital earmarked reserve of £7.9m was approved as part of the agreed budget strategy 
for the 2016/17 financial year.

3.2 The prudent management of capital resources is an important element of effective financial 
planning and supports the following Well-being Goals within the Well-being of Future 
Generations Act (Wales) 2015: -

A prosperous Wales.

A resilient Wales.

A healthier Wales.

A more equal Wales.

A Wales of cohesive communities.

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language.

A globally responsible Wales.

4. THE REPORT

4.1 Following Council approval of the £7.9m capital earmarked reserve, Heads of Service were 
asked to prepare bids to utilise the funding. Inevitably, the bids received significantly 
exceeded the available funding and a process of prioritising the bids has since been

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 7

Page 25



undertaken in consultation with Cabinet Members. The following bids are those which have 
been identified as the highest priority: -

Description Cost
£m

Purchase of 9 Twin Pack Refuse Collection Vehicles 1.553

Longbridge Baths, Risca (Phase 1) 0.300

Longbridge Baths, Risca (Phase 2) 1.000

Former Meals on Wheels Centre, Pengam 0.300

Children’s Centre for Children with Complex Needs 3.100

Closed Landfill Site at Ty Llwyd 0.200

21st Century Schools, Match-funding for Newbridge/Cwmcarn 1.500

A472 Drainage Scheme, Nelson 0.600

Caerphilly Leisure Centre, Essential Works 0.200

Caerphilly Leisure Centre, Options Appraisal 0.010

TOTAL: - 8.763

4.2 Purchase of 9 Twin Pack Refuse Collection Vehicles – At its meeting on the 21st

September 2016 Cabinet approved the purchase of 9 narrow chassis twin pack refuse 
collection vehicles to enable the separation of food and garden waste. Cabinet agreed that the 
total cost of these vehicles would be met from the £7.9m capital earmarked reserve. A 
procurement process has since been undertaken and the vehicles have been ordered at a 
total cost of £1.553m.

4.3 Longbridge Baths, Risca (Phase 1) - The former baths is currently utilised by Pontymister 
AFC as changing rooms. The structure is in poor condition, is an eyesore and requires 
demolition. The proposed funding of £300k will allow the changing rooms to be replaced by 
alternative facilities either on a temporary or permanent basis.

4.4 Longbridge Baths, Risca (Phase 2) - This proposal is to construct a new community 
facility/changing facilities (for 4 teams) to cater for mixed community use and both rugby and 
football. This will enable a move away from providing changing rooms that are used for a few 
hours a week to a facility that offers extensive community facilities and office hub facilities as 
well as the traditional sporting facilities. Extending hub facilities will aid a move towards agile 
working across the county borough. This facility can either be constructed on the site of the 
former baths (if the result of the flood consequence assessment prevents residential 
development) or on available land adjacent to the existing playing fields.

4.5 Former Meals on Wheels Centre, Pengam – This proposal is to convert this currently 
surplus building into office space to aid future office rationalisation. A potential service user 
request has already been received.

4.6 Children’s Centre for Children with Complex Needs – The existing Children’s Centre 
building and facilities are no longer fit-for-purpose and will become more unsuitable as time 
progresses. The needs of the children accessing this service are becoming more complex and 
the numbers of children requiring services of this nature are rising due to advances in medical 
interventions leading to an increase in life expectancy. It is therefore vital that plans are 
progressed to upgrade services before they become completely unsustainable.

The current Children’s Centre in Caerphilly is based in Energlyn. This location is not ideal for 
families, with those living further afield having to either travel or be transported at a cost to the 
Council. The location is also not on any public transport routes further limiting the 
opportunities.

Page 26



The size of the rooms available in the existing building and their layout are not conducive to 
the integrated model of service delivery and partnership working. Furthermore, the treatment 
rooms and facilities are limited in size and number. There are a number of other professionals 
who would benefit from being co-located or from holding clinics at the centre should more 
space be available. This would be of great benefit to families to prevent them needing to visit 
several different appointments in several different locations.

A secondary but important issue is the access families in Caerphilly have to leisure activities 
in comparison to those families living in neighbouring council areas. The current Children’s 
Centre does not open to families on the weekend or in the evenings. Any leisure services that 
are provided face the same limitations as outlined for core services. The building is not in an 
ideal location within the Council area for families to easily access and is no longer fit-for-
purpose.

The bid for £3.1m is to build a new facility that would reinforce and enhance the current 
integrated service model which is working well in Caerphilly but needs to be developed 
further. This proposal will be subject to consultation with key stakeholders and Cabinet will 
receive a further report in due course outlining firm project proposals along with details of 
feedback from the consultation process.

4.7 Closed Landfill Site at Ty Llwyd - £200k is required for a drainage scheme proposed by 
Engineers to deal with leachate issues at this site.

4.8 21st Century Schools, Match-funding for Newbridge/Cwmcarn – Cabinet will be aware of 
the decision of the Governing Body of Cwmcarn High School to seek to close the school. In 
order to plan for potential closure, the Council submitted a £3m business case to Welsh 
Government on the 21st July 2016. The business case was agreed by the School Strategy 
Board and proposed the following: -

Additional classrooms at Newbridge School to manage the initial pupil bulge and to 
accommodate any Cwmcarn High School pupils at date of decision to discontinue who 
wish to transfer to Newbridge School.

Undertaking demolition works at both Cwmcarn High school and Newbridge School.

The business case has been considered by the 21st Century Schools Team in the Welsh 
Government and the Cabinet Secretary for Education subsequently gave in principle approval 
of the business case on the 14th September 2016. This decision was without prejudice to the 
decision regarding the Governing Body’s request under section 80 of the School Standards & 
Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 to discontinue Cwmcarn High School. The decision is also 
subject to the Council agreeing the business case proposal and meeting its 50% contribution 
towards the costs of the works outlined in the business case in the sum of £1.5 million.

4.9 A472 Drainage Scheme, Nelson - The A472 main road south east of Nelson is the main east 
west road across the valleys and has for many years suffered from road flooding when heavy 
periods of rainfall are experienced. Existing streams and their culverts are inadequate and 
require replacement with larger culverts. The existing highway drainage is insufficient to deal 
with reasonable flows and again does not perform when heavy periods of rainfall are 
experienced. This will need renewal and supplementing with additional gullies. Over the years 
the water has affected the structural integrity and profile of the road and this will need 
attention also. The cost of the required works is estimated to be £600k.

4.10 Caerphilly Leisure Centre, Essential Works – The proposed funding of £200k will enable 
urgent works to be undertaken in the sports hall including a replacement roof, upgrading of 
lighting and overlaying the flooring. The funding will also cover additional unforeseen works 
necessary to complete the Health Suite refurbishment project. These include replacement of 
the undersized drainage connections and replacement of the floor slab which was found to be 
lacking a continuous damp proof membrane.

Page 27



4.11 Caerphilly Leisure Centre, Options Appraisal – It is proposed that £10k be allocated for an 
options appraisal previously undertaken by Alliance to be updated.

5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

5.1 Effective financial planning, including the prudent management of capital resources, is a key 
element in ensuring that the Well-being Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act 
(Wales) 2015 are met.

6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

6.1 An EIA screening has been completed in accordance with the Council's Strategic Equality 
Plan and supplementary guidance. No potential for unlawful discrimination and/or low level or 
minor negative impact has been identified regarding this report; therefore a full EIA has not 
been carried out.

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 The prioritised bids presented in this report total £8.763m, which exceeds the approved £7.9m 
capital earmarked reserve by £863k.

7.2 It is proposed that the additional £863k is funded from a one-off insurance rebate of £919k 
received from the contractor for the Sirhowy Enterprise Way (SEW) PFI scheme.

8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 There are no direct personnel implications arising from this report.

9. CONSULTATIONS

9.1 There are no consultation responses that have not been reflected in this report.

10. RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1 Cabinet is asked to: -

10.1.1 Approve the prioritised bids presented in this report totaling £8.763m.

10.1.2 Agree that the £863k additional cost in excess of the £7.9m approved capital earmarked 
reserve should be funded from the one-off insurance rebate of £919k received from the 
contractor for the Sirhowy Enterprise Way (SEW) PFI scheme.

11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

11.1 To ensure that available capital resources are deployed effectively.

12. STATUTORY POWER

12.1 The Local Government Acts 1998 and 2003.

Page 28



Author: Stephen Harris, Interim Head of Corporate Finance
E-mail: harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk   Tel: 01443 863022

Consultees: Corporate Management Team
Gail Williams, Interim Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer
Cllr Keith Reynolds, Leader
Cllr Barbara Jones, Deputy Leader & Cabinet Member for Corporate Services

Background Papers:
Council (24/02/16) - Budget Proposals 2016/17 and Medium-Term Financial Strategy 2016/2021

Page 29



Page 30

Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	3 Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 16eg Tachwedd 2016.
	4 Ysgol Arfaethedig Ar Gyfer Oedran 3-18 Yn Rhymni.
	5 Ysgol Uwch Cwmcarn -  Bwriad i gau
	6 Cynigion Arbedion Drafft ar gyfer 2017/18
	7 Ceisiadau Cyfalaf

